THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In the Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM GREENVILLE COUNTY

Court of Common Pleas

Perry H. Gravely, Circuit Court Judge

Case No. 2018-000741

RECEIVED

MAR 20 2019

SC Court of Appeals

Lamont Jeremiah McCauley, Appellant,

v.

Paul Wickensimer, Greenville Family Court Clerk's Office,
Respondents.

FINAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

Lamont Jeremiah McCauley
504 Bethel Drive
Mauldin, SC 29662
Appellant
(404)862-0179

STATEMENT OF ISSUES ON APPEAL

1. DID THE CIRCUIT COURT ERR IN PROPERLY AND LEGALLY NOTIFYING APPELLANT OF HEARING ON A MOTION FOR DISMISSAL?
2. DID THE CURCUIT COURT ERR BY INGORING MATERIAL EVIDENCE THAT SUPPORTED THE DISMISSAL OF MOTION FOR DISMISSAL ON 12(B)6 RULE?
3. DID THE CURCUIT COURT ERR IN HEARING ARGUMENTS FROM OPPOSING ATTORNEY TO DETERMINE THE GROUNDS TO ISSUE SUMMARY JUDGEMENT?

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

PRELUDE TO CASE SPECIFICS: The estate of the Appellant/Plaintiff attempted to get the initial tribunal in Georgia to validate the alleged child support through the 1946 Administrative Process Act and pursuant to Fair Debt Collection Practice Act of 1977. On April 6, 2017, the initial tribunal was unable to validate the debt and the debt was removed from the estate.

On May 5, 2017 The Child Support Enforcement Division of the County of Greenville filed a "Notice of Filing and Registration of Foreign Support Order" with the Greenville County Family Court Clerk's Office (*R. p2-3.*). This filing was not an existing enforcement order from a Georgia tribunal which was unable to validate the existence of a debt. The Plaintiff was sent notification of this filing on May 19, 2017. Instructions on the timeframe, legal grounds and administrative process to dispute the proposed establishment of "Registration of Foreign Support Order" were included in this filing (*R. p4*). On June 2, 2017, the Plaintiff lawfully filed a rebuttal to the County of Greenville Child Support Enforcement Division's contract offer with

The Greenville Family Court Clerk and he awaited a hearing date pursuant to *South Carolina's Code Law 63-17-750(A)(B) and South Carolina Judicial Department's Clerk of Court Manual Chapter 7 (7.1.2) (7.16)*. The Plaintiff states that after two months, and harassing correspondence from the Defendant, no tribunal court date was scheduled to hear rebuttal to the establishment of a "Foreign Support Order" in the State of South Carolina. On August 10, 2018, the defendant sent the plaintiff's employer an Income Withholding Order for 107.00USD a week (*R. p5-6*). The plaintiff contends that once he became aware of the defendant's action, he immediately sent a certified letter to the Defendant requesting that he stop this enforcement action until due process and an administrative hearing was held to establish or dismiss the proposed "Registration of Foreign Order of Support" or that the defendant could prove a debt existed through legal means (*R. p7-9*). The Plaintiff states that the defendant ignored the request from the estate to discontinue this action and continued to collect on the Income Withholding Order to the tune 1,150.00usd (*R. p10*). On October 23, 2017, a tribunal hearing dismissed the order to establish and/or enforce the original filed "Registration of Foreign Support Order" on the grounds stated in the initial rebuttal filed on June 2, 2017(*R. p11-12*).

The Plaintiff states that the fact that the tribunal dismissed the establishment of a "Foreign Support Order" affirmatively shows that the tribunal had not established jurisdiction to issue any order of Income Withholding, therefore, no enforcement should have been initiated from the defendant or his office according to *S.C. Code Ann. § 63-17-750 (A) (B) and South Carolina Judicial Department's Clerk of Court Manual Chapter 7 (7.1.2.) (7.16)*. Furthermore, the admittance by the tribunal in the Dismissal of the "Registration of Foreign Support Order",

that monies had been collected by the defendant gave material evidence that the defendant acted Out-side of the scope of his duties; therefore, the defendant's actions constituted no protection from immunity to a civil action according to *SECTION 15-78-70 (b)* of the **South Carolina Code of Laws and the Tort Claims Act (R. p27. L 1-4) (R. p20 L1-4, 8-11).**

ARGUMENTS

1. BECAUSE RESPONDENT AND/OR COURT DID NOT LEGALLY NOTIFY APPELLANT OF MOTION TO HEAR DISMISSAL DURING COURT SCHEDULED MOTION FOR VENUE CHANGE PURSUANT TO SOUTH CAROLINA RULES OF CIVIL PROCEDURE, CIRCUIT COURT ERRED IN PROCEEDING TO HEAR MOTION FOR DISMISSAL. (R. p25. L 6-9)

STANDARD OF REVIEW

In *Brown*, we found the trial court had not given notice to the parties that it was going to consider the affidavits and hear the 12(b)(6) motion as a motion for summary judgment. Thus, the supporting affidavits in *Brown* were improperly considered by the trial court in ruling on the 12(b)(6) motion. *Brown v. Leverette*, 291 S.C. 364, 367, 353 S.E.2d 697, 698-99 (1987)

DISCUSSION:

The Appellant states that the Respondent's Attorney Russell W. Harter, Jr., sent a Motion for Dismissal on February 1, 2018, five days **prior** to the Defendant being legally served by the plaintiff through a compliant and summons dated February 6, 2018. (R. p14). This action was in direct violation of South Carolina Judicial Department's **Rule 12(a)**.

"A defendant shall serve his answer within 30 days After the service of the complaint upon him" and "The motion should be made before answer for early disposition of cases"

The Motion for Change of Venue was filed on January 16, 2018 and was placed on the Circuit Court docket for March 12, 2018. The Plaintiff contends that he was never legally notified by the court clerk's office, the defendant nor the defendant's attorney that the court was going to consider affidavits and hear a "Motion to Dismiss" during the court docketed Motion for "Change of Venue". This procedure to hear the Motion to Dismiss and the procedural defect

were objected to by the plaintiff's representative and noted during this hearing (*see transcript*).

The Appellant also contends that because of the Respondent's dual role as Greenville County's Clerk of Court and Greenville Family Court Clerk he has access to pertinent filings, motions and proceedings that could lead to bias and bending of court rules and procedures as they relate directly to this case. Appellant explains that improprieties and ethical questions such as; filings and procedural "conflicts of interest" with the defendant's professional relationships in the Greenville Circuit Court was the reason for filing a Motion for Change of Venue and a request for a trial by jury.

2. BECAUSE CIRCUIT COURT IGNORED MATERIAL EVIDENCE PRESENTED BY ADMINISTRATIVE COURT IN ITS DISMISSAL OF THE RESIGSTRATION OF FOREIGN ORDER OF SUPPORT, WHICH STATED THAT PROPERTY WAS CONFISCATED BY RESPONDENT WITHOUT THE ESTABLISHMENT OF A SUPPORT ORDER, THE COURT ERRED IN HEARING EVIDENCE THAT FURTHER SUPPORTED LACK OF SUBJECT MATTER JURSDICTION AND THE SUBSEQUENT ISSUING A SUMMARY JUDGEMENT. (R. p27. L 1-4) (R. p20 L1-4, 8-11).

STANDARD OF REVIEW

Brown v. Leverette, 291 S.C. 364, 353 S.E.2d 697; Higgins v. MUSC, 326 S.C. 592, 486 S.E.2d 269 (Ct.App.1997) (holding that the plaintiffs had not been "fairly apprised" that the trial court would consider material outside the pleadings in support of the defendant's 12(b)(6) motion). Nevertheless, affidavits and other evidence outside the pleadings may, in certain circumstances, be considered in support of a motion to dismiss based on lack of jurisdiction. For instance, when the allegations of the complaint are factually sufficient under Rule 8(a)(1), SCRCP, but do not affirmatively show subject matter jurisdiction, the motion to dismiss may be supported by, and the court may consider, affidavits or other evidence proving lack of jurisdiction. **Woodard v. Westvaco Corp., 315 S.C. 329, 433 S.E.2d 890 (Ct.App.1993)**, vacated on other grounds by 319 S.C. 240, 460 S.E.2d 392 (1995).

However, the presentation of such evidence does not convert the motion to dismiss into one for summary judgment. Summary judgment is an adjudication on the merits of the case, whereas dismissal for lack of subject matter jurisdiction is not an adjudication on the merits. Summary judgment is appropriate when it is clear that there is no genuine issue of material fact and that the moving party is entitled to a judgment as a matter of law. The absence of a genuine issue of material fact.

DISCUSSION:

The plaintiff alleges that the Circuit Court Judge ignored material evidence which affirmatively showed that court had subject matter jurisdiction. It is the plaintiff's contention that, the Circuit Court should not have considered other evidence outside of the facts in support of lack of subject matter jurisdiction and the Motion to Dismiss on a 12(b)(6). The plaintiff states that the fact that the tribunal dismissed the establishment of a "Registration of Foreign Support Order" affirmatively shows that the tribunal had not established jurisdiction to issue any Order of Income Withholding, therefore, no enforcement should have been initiated by the defendant in his role as Family Court Clerk. Furthermore, the admittance by the tribunal in the Dismissal of the "Registration of Foreign Support Order" that monies had been collected by the defendant gave material evidence that the defendant acted outside of the scope of his duties, therefore, giving Circuit Court subject matter jurisdiction to hear the case.

3. DID THE CIRCUIT COURT ERR IN HEARING ARGUMENTS FROM OPPOSING ATTORNEY TO DETERMINE THE GROUNDS TO ISSUE SUMMARY JUDGEMENT?

STANDARD OF REVIEW

"Trinsey V Pagliaro, 229 F.Support. 647-District Court, ED Pennsylvania 1964 the court stated that "[s]tatements of counsel in their briefs or argument while enlightening to the Court are not sufficient for purposes of granting a motion to dismiss or summary judgment."

DISCUSSION:

The Circuit Court asserts that "The Defendant makes reference to the provisions of S.C. Ann §15-78-60 and numerous exceptions from liability as set out in that statute. Specifically, subsections (1)(2)(3)(4)(5) and (23) would appear to have overlapping application to this claim. I specifically find that issues raised by the Plaintiff appear to be judicial and quasi-judicial actions and/or quasi-judicial nature. Clearly, the claim is also one that relates to the institution or persecution of a judicial and/or an administrative proceeding" (**R. p19 L 12-17**). The Circuit Court goes on to make a summary judgment which states "Based on the record before me, I find that the claims alleged in the Plaintiff's Complaint are barred by the South Carolina Tort Claims Act, and this Court lacks jurisdiction of the subject matter therefore, the Defendants' Motion to Dismiss is granted" (**R. p20 L 8-11**). It is clear that the Circuit Court utilized arguments from opposing counsel to determine that it had no subject matter jurisdiction while ignoring material evidence that the administrative and quasi-judicial tribunal failed to properly establish jurisdiction to withhold Plaintiff's property (**R. p27 L 1-4**) (**R. p20 L 1-4, 8-11**).