THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In The Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM GREENVILLE COUNTY
Court of Common Pleas

Perry H. Gravely, Circuit Court Judge

Appellate Case No. 2018-000741
Civil Action No. 2017-CP-23-8068

Lamont Jeremiah McCauley, Appellant,

v.

Paul Wickensimer, Greenville County Family
Court Clerk's Office, Respondents.

RECEIVED

SEP 19 2019

SC Court of Appeals

FINAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENTS

Russell W. Harter, Jr., #2778
Carly H. Davis, #100112
Chapman, Harter & Harter, P.A.
14 Lavinia Avenue
Post Office Box 10224 (29603)
Greenville, South Carolina 29601
Telephone: (864) 233-4500
Attorneys for Respondents

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This appeal arises out of an action filed by McCauley in the Greenville County Court of Common Pleas. (R. pp. 34-58) McCauley alleges that he was a party to a family court proceeding that resulted in the Greenville County Family Court directing McCauley's employer to withhold wages for payment under a foreign support order from Georgia. *Id.* The Plaintiff's Complaint has a number of attachments that include a notice filed with the Greenville County Family Court on May 5, 2017 requesting enforcement of the support order from the State of Georgia. (R. pp. 37-38) The Plaintiff contends that the Defendant Clerk of the Greenville County Family Court prematurely issued a directive resulting in the Plaintiff's wages being withheld for a period of time in the total amount of \$1,150.00. (R. pp. 53-55)

It appears further that the Greenville County Family Court issued an order dated October 24, 2017 which dismissed the Family Court action in Greenville County and suspended enforcement of the Georgia child support order. (R. pp. 48-49) The Family Court Order of October 24, 2017 also provided that any funds which had been collected by the Greenville County Clerk of Court and disbursed to the State of Georgia would be subject to challenge in an action in the State of Georgia. (R. p. 49)

McCauley alleged that the wage garnishment was not in keeping with proper procedure and the Plaintiff alleges entitlement to monetary damages from the Clerk of Court. (R. pp. 53-55)

The defendants filed a Motion to Dismiss asserting immunity pursuant to the South Carolina Tort Claims Act including S.C. Code Ann. §15-78-60 and subsections (1), (2), (3), (4), (5), and (23). (R. pp. 14-16) The defendants asserted that the issues raised by the McCauley appear to be judicial and quasi-judicial actions and/or administrative actions of a judicial or quasi-judicial nature. *Id.* Further, the defendants alleged that the claim is also one that relates to the institution or prosecution of a judicial and/or an administrative proceeding; and all acts alleged of the Clerk of Court were within the course and scope of the Clerk's official duties. *Id.*

A hearing took place on March 12, 2018 with The Honorable Judge Gravely presiding at which time the Court granted Defendants' Motion to Dismiss on the above-mentioned grounds and specifically holding that the allegations set forth in Plaintiff's Complaint are barred by the South Carolina Tort Claims Act. (R. pp. 59-87)

The plaintiff filed a Motion to Change Venue, which was set for March 12, 2018. The Court's ruling on the Defendants' Motion to Dismiss made the plaintiff's venue motion moot. *Id.*

McCauley appeals the Order dismissing the action alleging that he did not receive proper notice of Defendants' Motion to Dismiss, that the Circuit Court ignored material evidence, and improperly heard argument from defense counsel concerning the grounds for dismissal.

STANDARD OF REVIEW

"On appeal from the dismissal of a case pursuant to Rule 12(b)(6), an appellate court applies the same standard of review as the trial court." *Rydde v. Morris*, 381 S.C. 643, 646, 675 S.E.2d 431, 433 (2009). "That standard requires the Court to construe the complaint in a light most favorable to the nonmovant and determine if the facts alleged and the inferences reasonably deducible from the pleadings would entitle the plaintiff to relief on any theory of the case." *Id.* If the facts alleged and inferences deducible therefrom would entitle the plaintiff to any relief, then dismissal under Rule 12(b)(6) is improper. *Sloan Const. Co. v. Southco Grassing, Inc.*, 377 S.C. 108, 113, 659 S.E.2d 158, 161 (2008).

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

1. McCauley was properly notified of the Defendant's Motion to Dismiss.

McCauley was served Defendants' Motion to Dismiss on January 31st, 2018. The hearing took place on March 12, 2018. At that time, McCauley was present and did not object to the Court hearing both motions. (R. pp. 59-87)

Upon information and belief, McCauley was provided adequate time to

prepare and did not object to the Court hearing both motions at the time of the hearing on March 12, 2018. In addition, McCauley did not ask the Court for more time and/or that the motion be continued; and even if the motion was not heard at that time, giving McCauley more time would not have changed the law or the arguments and the outcome would have, and should have, been the same.

2. The Court properly concluded that McCauley's Complaint failed to state a claim upon which relief can be granted.

Argument A

McCauley alleges that the Court "should not have considered other evidence outside of the facts in support of lack of subject matter jurisdiction and the Motion to Dismiss on a 12(b)(6)." (McCauley Initial Brief, p. 9.) Contrary to McCauley's allegations, the Court only considered what was set forth in the Plaintiff's Complaint which included numerous attachments and then applied the facts of the case to the law. (R. pp. 34-58) The Plaintiff's Complaint incorporated a Family Court Order dated October 24, 2017 which provided that any funds which had been collected by the Greenville County Clerk of Court and disbursed to the State of Georgia would be subject to challenge in an action in the State of Georgia, not South Carolina. (R. pp. 48-49)

Furthermore, the acts and/or omissions alleged in the Plaintiff's Complaint are clearly an administrative function of the Clerk of Court. Therefore, the Court properly found that Plaintiff's Complaint did not set forth facts sufficient to state a

cause of action because plaintiff's claims are barred by the South Carolina Tort Claims Act. (R. pp. 16-20)

Argument B

The claim of the plaintiff relates to the Clerk of Court's actions with respect to provisions of the Uniform Interstate Family Support Act. Pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. §63-3-530, the Family Court has exclusive jurisdiction, and the Circuit Court therefore, lacks subject matter jurisdiction as to the issues raised by the argument in the Complaint.

3. Arguments of Counsel